

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF ALABAMA  
NORTHERN DIVISION

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,	)	
	)	
Plaintiff,	)	
	)	CIVIL ACTION NO. 2881
	)	
v.	)	
	)	
JOHN ALLEN BLACKBURN, MRS. W. F.)	)	<u>PLAINTIFF'S PROPOSED</u>
BARNETTE, DUDLEY PEARSON, AS	)	<u>FINDINGS OF FACT AND</u>
REGISTRARS OF VOTERS OF PERRY	)	<u>PROPOSED CONCLUSIONS</u>
COUNTY, ALABAMA,	)	<u>OF LAW</u>
	)	
Defendants.	)	
	)	

---

1. The original complaint in this suit was filed on August 27, 1962. Following the hearing on plaintiff's motion for a preliminary injunction this Court on November 15, 1962 filed findings of fact and conclusions of law and issued a preliminary injunction. This Order has been and is now in full force and effect.

On January 8, 1963 the plaintiff filed with the Court an application for an order requiring the defendant registrars, Neely B. Mayton, John Allen Blackburn, and Floyd Bamberg, to show cause why they should not be held in civil contempt of the preliminary injunction issued by the Court on November 15, 1962.

On May 17, 1963 this Court issued an additional order concerning the procedures to be followed by the defendant registrars in processing applicants for registration to vote in Perry County, Alabama. This Order has been and is now in full force and effect.

On March 6, 1964, the plaintiff filed with this Court an application for an order requiring the defendant registrars, John Allen Blackburn, Mrs. W. F. Barnette and C. Dudley Pearson, to show cause why they should not be held in civil contempt of the Orders of this Court and for an order requiring the defendants to register certain Negro applicants whose applications for registration to vote had been denied since November 15, 1962. A hearing on this motion was held before this Court on April 23 and 24, 1964, at which the plaintiff and the defendants presented the testimony of witnesses and produced documentary evidence.

2. Since November 15, 1962 five different persons have served as registrars of voters in Perry County, Alabama. Neely B. Mayton, John Allen Blackburn and Floyd Bamberg continued to serve as registrars following the Order of this Court on November 15, 1962 until their terms of office expired about October 1, 1963. On November 26, 1962 the Order of November 15, 1962 was personally served on each of these registrars and on May 28, 1963 the Order of May 17, 1963 was served personally on each of these registrars. John Allen Blackburn was reappointed as a registrar of voters and has served as chairman of the Perry County Board of Registrars since about October 1, 1963. Mrs. W. F. Barnette was appointed as a registrar of voters on about October 1, 1963 and served continuously to the date of this hearing. She was served personally on October 8, 1963 with the Orders of November 15, 1962 and May 17, 1963. C. Dudley Pearson was appointed as a registrar of voters and has served continuously since about

January 27, 1964. Pearson was served personally on February 14, 1964 with the Orders of November 15, 1962 and May 17, 1963.

3. Perry County, Alabama, as of the 1960 Census had a voting age population of 8,643 of which 3,441 were white persons and 5,202 were Negroes.

4. The voter registration books maintained by the defendant registrars show that as of March 2, 1964 practically all of the white persons in Perry County and 315 Negroes were registered to vote.

5. Since the Order issued by this Court on November 15, 1962 until March 20, 1964 the Perry County Board of Registrars processed at least 752 applications for registration to vote. 527 of these applications were filed by Negroes, of which 82 were accepted by the Board and 445 were rejected. 225 applications were filed by white persons, of which 186 were accepted by the Board and 39 were rejected.

6. During the entire period from December 1962 to April 23, 1964, the defendant registrars and their predecessors in office have rejected Negro applicants if they did not sign the loyalty Oath on the application form even though their forms show them to be loyal. This requirement as employed by the defendant registrars and their predecessors in office has resulted in the rejection of qualified Negro applicants:

- a. Many of the Negro applicants during the period from December 1962 to April 23, 1964 have not been clearly instructed that they should sign the Oath if they are

willing to do so nor have they had the Oath administered to them. As a result about 40% of the Negro applicants did not sign the Oath from November 15, 1962 to February 17, 1964, even though their forms show them to be loyal. Included among these rejected Negroes are applicants whose forms show them to possess the qualifications for registration to vote.

- b. During this same period from December 1962 to April 23, 1964 white applicants were instructed to sign the loyalty Oath. As a result 94% of the white applicants during this period signed the loyalty Oath.
- c. During the period from at least 1953 to about November 19, 1962 white applicants were not required to sign the loyalty Oath as a prerequisite to registration to vote. The application forms reveal that from April 1959 to November 15, 1962, about 96% of the white applicants who were registered to vote did not sign the loyalty Oath.

7. During the entire period from November 15, 1962 to April 23, 1964, the defendant registrars and their predecessors in office have required Negro applicants as a prerequisite for registration to vote to secure a supporting witness to appear before the registrars and

fill out and sign the Examination of Supporting Witness. This requirement as employed by the defendant registrars and their predecessors in office has resulted in the rejection of qualified Negro applicants:

- a. Some of the Negro applicants during the period from November 15, 1962 to March 20, 1964 have not been clearly instructed of the requirement that they secure the supporting witness; other Negro applicants from November 15, 1962 to June 30, 1963 were instructed that they must secure at least one white voter to sign their application form as their supporting witness or that they must secure two persons to sign their form as supporting witnesses. From about November 15, 1962 to April 23, 1963 more than 40% of the Negro applicants did not obtain a supporting witness to sign their application form prior to the time such form was rejected.
- b. During this same period from November 19, 1962 to April 23, 1964 some white applicants were not required to obtain supporting witnesses and supporting witnesses were secured by someone else without the applicants' knowledge. About 80% of all the application forms filed by white applicants from November 15, 1962 to March 1964 contain the signature of a supporting witness.

c. During the period from at least 1953 to about November 19, 1962 white applicants were not required to obtain a supporting witness as a prerequisite to registration to vote.

8. During the entire period from November 15, 1962 to at least March 1, 1964, the defendant registrars and their predecessors in office have used the APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION, QUESTIONNAIRE AND OATH as a strict test or examination for Negro applicants. This use of the application as a strict test or examination has resulted in the rejection of qualified Negro applicants:

- a. Qualified Negro applicants have been denied registration to vote on account of formal, technical, and inconsequential errors or omissions made by them in completing their applications;
- b. The defendant registrars and their predecessors in office in using the application form as a strict examination or test for Negro applicants have denied Negro applicants assistance and rejected them for errors or omissions on their forms; while, during the same period, white applicants have been provided necessary assistance to enable them to complete their application forms to the satisfaction of the defendant registrars or were accepted even though their application forms contained the

same errors or omissions for which  
Negro applicants were rejected;

- c. The application form was not used  
as a test or examination for white  
applicants from at least April 1959  
to November 15, 1962 and no white  
applicant was rejected during this  
period for errors and omissions con-  
tained on his application form. White  
applicants during that period were  
provided whatever assistance was  
necessary to enable their form to be  
completed.

9. From January 27, 1964 through January 30, 1964,  
the registrars required that applicants as a prerequisite  
to registration answer the question:

How many members of the Federal House  
of Representatives are currently  
accredited to the State of Alabama?  
Why?

From January 31, 1964 through February 1964, the registrars  
required that applicants as a prerequisite to registration to  
read and interpret Article X of the Constitution of the  
United States which reads:

Article X. The powers not delegated  
to the United States by the Constitu-  
tion nor prohibited by it to the  
states, are reserved to the states  
respectively, or to the people.

The registrars rejected qualified Negro applicants because  
of their answers to these questions:

- a. During the period from January 27  
through February 1964, the registrars

rejected 95% of all Negro applicants for registration to vote, and 30% of all white applicants.

- b. The registrars adopted the use of these new additional tests for the purpose of obstructing and delaying the registration of qualified Negro applicants.
- c. Since at least 1953 to January 27, 1964, applicants for registration to vote in Perry County were not required to complete any such tests as a prerequisite for registration to vote.

10. In March 1964, the defendants commenced to use a new application form which includes three new tests -- a test of the applicant's knowledge of government, a test of the applicant's ability to read a portion of the Constitution, and a test of the applicant's ability to write from the dictation of the registrar. The registrars have also required Negro applicants during at least April 1964 to interpret the meaning of one of the provisions of the Constitution appearing on the application form. The registrars have rejected qualified Negro applicants as a result of the use of this new application form:

- a. Qualified Negro applicants are rejected if they fail to answer one of the questions in Part II of the application form which the registrars regard as an important question. The registrars reject applicants who fail to answer correctly

one of the four questions on the applicants' knowledge of government test, fails to read a portion of the Constitution to the registrar's satisfaction, or fails to write from dictation to the satisfaction of the registrar.

b. During March 1964 the defendant registrars rejected 83% of all Negro applicants for registration to vote and 31% of all white applicants.

c. Since at least 1953 to February 27, 1964 white applicants have not been required to take tests similar to those applied by the registrars in the use of the new application form.

11. During the entire period from November 15, 1962 to April 24, 1964, the defendant registrars and their predecessors in office have employed certain procedures and requirements which have had the effect of obstructing and delaying the registration of qualified Negro applicants:

a. The defendant registrars and their predecessors in office have failed to inform Negro applicants of the specific reason for their rejection;

b. The defendant registrars and predecessors in office have failed to act upon the applications of some Negro applicants within a reasonable time after they have been filed with the registrars and have failed to notify

Negro applicants after May 17, 1963 of the action taken on their applications within thirty days after such applications have been filed;

- c. The defendant registrars and their predecessors in office have failed to adopt reasonable rules and procedures to enable them to process and register all applicants expeditiously. The registrars are capable of processing as many as ten to twelve applicants at one time but have only taken from one to four applicants at times when persons were waiting to apply for registration;
- d. The defendant registrars and their predecessors in office have failed to process applicants in the order in which they present themselves to apply. The registrars have failed to adopt any rules or regulations to insure that applicants will be processed in the order in which they appear and the registrars have processed white applicants before Negro applicants even though the Negro applicants appeared first to apply for registration;
- e. The defendant registrars and their predecessors in office have failed to give reasonable public notice as to where they

were to meet to receive and process applicants for registration. During this period the registrars met in five different places in the courthouse on different registration days;

- f. The defendant registrars and their predecessors in office have issued public notices that they would not receive applications for registration on certain days because they had reserved those days for clerical purposes. The registration records show that the days reserved for clerical purposes from April 1, 1963 through August 5, 1963 were not used by the registrars for this purpose.

12. During the entire period from November 15, 1962 to April 23, 1964 the defendant registrars and their predecessors in office have rejected Negro applicants whose application forms show the applicant to possess the following qualifications for registration to vote in Perry County, Alabama:

- (a) He is a citizen of not less than twenty-one years of age;
- (b) He has resided in the State one year, in the county six months, and in the precinct three months;
- (c) He embraces the duties and obligations of citizenship;
- (d) He is not disqualified by reason of bad character, conviction of a disqualifying crime, insanity or idiocy, habituation to drink, or dope addiction;

- (e) He is able to demonstrate his ability to read or write by answering the questions on the application form and questionnaire.

13. The Court specifically finds that the Negro applicants listed in the Appendix attached hereto and incorporated herein, applied for registration to the Board of Registrars of Perry County, Alabama, since November 15, 1962, and that each was, at the time of his application, denied registration on account of his or her race or color, and that each was, at the time of his or her application, qualified to register to vote under the laws, practices, customs and usages followed and applied by the Board of Registrars of Perry County, Alabama.

14. The defendants have knowingly and deliberately disobeyed and violated the terms of the Orders of this Court of November 15, 1962 and May 17, 1963, in that:

- a. Said defendants knowingly and deliberately disobeyed and violated the terms of Paragraph 1 of the Order of this Court of November 15, 1962, by engaging in acts and practices which involved and resulted in distinctions based on race or color in the registration of voters in Perry County, Alabama.
- b. Said defendants knowingly and deliberately disobeyed and violated the terms of Paragraph 3 of the Order of this Court of November 15, 1962, and Paragraph D of the Order of this Court of May 17, 1963, by refusing to receive and process

all applications for registration in order of the applicant's appearance without regard to race or color.

- c. Said defendants knowingly and deliberately disobeyed and violated the terms of Paragraph 5 of the Order of this Court of November 15, 1962, and Paragraph G of the Order of this Court of May 17, 1963, by failing to notify each rejected applicant of the specific reason or reasons for his rejection.
- d. Said defendants knowingly and deliberately disobeyed and violated the terms of Paragraph 7 of the Order of this Court of November 15, 1962, by failing to register all applicants who meet the qualifications set forth in Paragraph 7.
- e. Said defendants knowingly and deliberately disobeyed and violated the terms of Paragraph 8 of the Order of this Court of November 15, 1962, by rejecting applicants for formal, technical and inconsequential errors or omissions in their application forms.
- f. Said defendants knowingly and deliberately disobeyed and violated the terms of Paragraph E of the Order of this Court of May 17, 1963, by failing to adopt reasonable regulations necessary for the expeditious receipt and processing of applications.

g. Said defendant Blackburn as Chairman of the Board of Registrars of Perry County knowingly and deliberately disobeyed and violated that portion of the Order of this Court of May 17, 1963, which required him and the other members of the Board to file monthly reports with this Court.

PROPOSED CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. This Court has jurisdiction of this proceeding under 42 U.S.C. 1971.

2. The defendants have a duty under the Fifteenth Amendment, under 42 U.S.C. 1971(a), and under this Court's injunction not to engage in any discriminatory acts or practices on the basis of race in the registration for voting in Perry County. This duty includes the duty to refrain from engaging in any act which involves or results in distinctions of race or color, and to refrain from applying different and more stringent registration requirements, procedures and standards to Negro applicants than those which have been applied to white applicants.

3. The acts of the defendants set forth in Findings of Fact numbers 6 through 12 are in violation of 42 U.S.C. 1971(a) and the Fourteenth and Fifteenth Amendments to the Constitution of the United States.

4. The acts of the defendants specifically set forth in Findings of Fact number 14 are in violation of the Orders of this Court and are in civil contempt of this Court.

5. The defendants, by adopting and continuing to use registration procedures and requirements more onerous than those in use prior to the date of the injunction in this case (November 15, 1962), as specifically found in Findings of Fact numbers 6 through 11 have violated 42 U.S.C. 1971(a), the Fifteenth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States, and the

Order of this Court of November 15, 1962, in civil contempt of this Court.

6. This Court is authorized to order the defendants to register specific individuals where the Court has found that such individuals have been discriminated against on account of their race, and that they possessed all of the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to register at the time they applied for and were denied registration by the defendants.

7. The Negro citizens of Perry County listed in the attached Appendix were qualified to vote at the time of their rejected applications for registration within the meaning of this Court's Order of November 15, 1962, and 42 U.S.C. 1971(a).

APPENDIX

<u>Name</u>	<u>Address</u>	<u>Date of Application (s)</u>
Adams, Julius	Rt. 2, Box 111 Uniontown, Ala.	6-6-63 10-7-63 1-28-64 2-17-64
Avery, Willis	Rt. 1, Box 180 Newbern, Ala.	6-6-63 1-30-64
Avery, Willis, Jr.	Rt. 1, Box 180 Newbern, Ala.	7-16-63
Banks, Rev, A. Edward	North Centerville St. Marion, Ala.	Undated 6-6-63
Banks, Alfred	Rt. 1, Box 16 Uniontown, Ala.	6-6-63 10-21-63 1-27-64 2-17-64
Banks, Jim Jr.	Rt. 1, Box 163 Uniontown, Ala.	6-17-63 10-7-63
Bell, James	Marion, Ala.	7-15-63 10-7-63
Benjamin, Rosie	P. O. Box 31 Marion, Ala.	10-21-63
Billingsley, Johnny	P. O. Box 72 Marion, Ala.	7-3-63
Black, Freddie	Rt. 1, Box 144 Uniontown, Ala.	6-17-63 1-6-64
Black, Mary Lee	Rt. 1, Box 124 Uniontown, Ala.	10-21-63 2-17-64
Boddie, Martha W.	P. O. Box 461 Uniontown, Ala.	6-6-63
Brand, Louise	Rt. 3, Box 196 Marion, Ala.	12-16-63
Brown, Alice H.	P. O. Box 474 Uniontown, Ala.	11-14-63
Brown, Arthur	Marion, Ala.	6-18-63 1-28-64

<u>Name</u>	<u>Address</u>	<u>Date of Application (s)</u>
Carmichael, Charles	Rt. 2, Box 115 Uniontown, Ala.	7-5-63
Carr, Marjorie M.	P. O. Box 476 Uniontown, Ala.	6-6-63 11-14-63
Carr, Willie Fred	P. O. Box 476 Uniontown, Ala.	6-6-63
Carroll, Helen	Rt. 1, Box 19 Marion, Ala.	1-21-63
Carter, Washington	Rt. 1, Box 152 Newbern, Ala.	Undated 6-18-63 10-7-63 1-29-64
Childs, Mary	607 Clay Street Marion, Ala.	10-7-63 12-16-63 1-6-64
Clark, Annie B.	604 Bibb Street Marion, Ala.	1-20-64
Clemons, Daisey Bell	P. O. Box 51 Marion, Ala.	10-7-63
Clemons, Erskine C.	P. O. Box 51 Marion, Ala.	6-18-63 10-7-63
Clemons, Lucy	P. O. Box 51 Marion, Ala.	6-17-63 10-7-63 2-3-64
Coleman, Alma	Sprott, Ala.	11-18-63
Coleman, Jodie	Sprott, Ala.	10-7-63 7-3-63
Cosby, John Bryant	Rt. 3, Box 45 Marion, Ala.	6-7-63
Dansby, W. A.	Rt. 1, Box 87 Uniontown, Ala.	6-6-63
Davis, Stephen Tucker	P. O. Box 74 Uniontown, Ala.	12-17-62
Deyampert, Ed	Rt. 1, Box 165 Newbern, Ala.	6-7-63 1-30-64
Dixon, Joseph	Uniontown, Ala.	6-7-63
England, George Jr.	Rt. 2, Box 118 Sprott, Ala.	6-7-63 10-7-63

<u>Name</u>	<u>Address</u>	<u>Date of Application(s)</u>
Ford, Mamie L.	Rt. 1, Box 159 Sprott, Ala.	11-11-63
Fowlkes, Lula Mae	Rt. 1, Box 216 Marion, Alabama	6-7-63 1-27-64
Gibbs, Zayda E.	P. O., Box 553 Marion, Alabama	6-18-63
Goldsby, James	Rt. 3, Box 36 Marion, Alabama	7-15-63
Goodson, Minnie	Rt. 2, Box 189 Marion, Alabama	10-21-63
Gray, Flora B.	Box 101 Uniontown, Ala.	11-14-63
Griffin, Amaziah	Sprott, Ala.	11-11-63
Griffin, Clara B.	Sprott, Ala.	11-11-63
Griffin, Joe	Rt. 1, Box 69 Marion, Ala.	6-7-63
Griffin, Joe, Jr.	Rt. 1, Box 69 Marion, Ala.	7-5-63 1-30-64
Hall, Annie Nell	Rt. 2, Box 114 A Marion, Ala.	8-19-63 10-7-63
Hall, Rosa B.	Rt. 2, Box 12 Marion, Ala.	10-21-63 10-7-63
Harris, James H.	Rt. 2, Box 111 Uniontown, Ala.	10-21-63 1-30-64 6-17-63
Heard, David	Sprott, Ala.	11-5-63
Heard, Dorothy J.	Rt. 1, Box 99 Sprott, Ala.	11-5-63
Heard, Mary	Rt. 3, Box 45 Marion, Ala.	6-17-63
Heard, Sadie L.	Sprott, Ala.	1-29-64
Henderson, Jessie	Rt. 1, Box 36 Marion, Ala.	10-21-63 7-3-63
Hinton, Maggie	P. O. Box 474 Marion, Ala.	7-16-63

<u>Name</u>	<u>Address</u>	<u>Date of Application(s)</u>
Hogué, Jane L.	217 Thompson St. Marion, Ala.	6-10-63, 1-27-64 11-18-63 2-17-64
Holifield, Clara D.	Rt. 1, Box 259-A Marion, Ala.	10-7-63
Howard, James H.	Rt. 2, Box 55 Marion, Ala.	1-31-64 6-10-63
Huff, Orethia	Rt. 1, Box 136 Sprott, Ala.	11-11-63
Jackson, Amy	Rt. 1, Box 154 Newbern, Ala.	6-10-63 10-10-63 1-27-64
Jackson, Annie Bell	Rt. 1, Box 188-A Newbern, Ala.	6-25-63
Jackson, Eugene	Rt. 1, Box 62 Marion, Ala.	6-10-63
Jackson, Hannah Jane	Rt. 1, Box 176 Newbern, Ala.	8-19-63 10-10-63 1-20-64
Jackson, Harrison	Rt. 1, Box 154 Newbern, Ala.	10-10-63 7-15-63 1-22-64
Jackson, Luke	Newbern, Ala.	6-10-63
Jackson, Mary Alice	Rt. 1, Box 176 Newbern, Ala.	6-25-63
Jemison, Mrs. Ethel	Rt. 3, Box 70 Marion, Ala.	6-10-63
Jemison, Norman	Rt. 3, Box 70 Marion, Ala.	6-10-63 1-31-64
Johnson, Minnie Dell	804 Washington St. Marion, Ala.	6-10-63 11-18-63
Johnson, Pearlie M.	Rt. 3, Box 195 Marion, Ala.	11-18-63 12-16-63 2-17-64
Johnson, Robert T.	804 Washington St. Marion, Ala.	6-10-63 11-18-63
Jones, Mrs. Corene	Rt. 1, Box 122 Sprott, Ala.	6-10-63 11-11-63
Jones, Robert	Rt. 1, Box 121 Uniontown, Ala.	6-11-63 10-21-63 1-27-64 2-17-64

<u>Name</u>	<u>Address</u>	<u>Date of Application(s)</u>
Key, Rose	Gainesville, Ala.	11-14-63
Kinard, George A.	Rt. 2, Box 11 Marion, Ala.	6-11-63
Kinard, Margaret	Rt. 2, Box 11 Marion, Ala.	7-3-63
King, Ernestine	Rt. 1, Box 7 Marion, Ala.	7-5-63
Lapsley, Althea	Rt. 1, Box 214 Marion, Ala.	7-3-63
Lee, Emerson	Convenient St. Marion, Ala.	6-11-63
Lewis, Elizabeth	321 Graham St. Marion, Ala.	6-24-63
Lewis, John C.	Rt. 2, Box 17 Marion, Ala.	6-11-63
Lewis, Thelma	Rt. 2, Box 17 Marion, Ala.	6-11-63
Lipscomb, Hattie	Uniontown, Ala.	6-11-63
McCreary, Louise	General Delivery Uniontown, Ala.	6-14-63
McLaughlin, Willie Ann	Rt. 1, Box 56 Marion, Ala.	6-11-63
Martin, Arles	Rt. 3, Box 180 Marion, Ala.	10-16-63 6-11-63
Martin, Aurelia G.	Rt. 1, Box 101 Sprott, Ala.	11-18-63 1-30-64
Martin, Rose L.	Rt. 3, Box 182 Marion, Ala.	10-16-63 1-20-64 7-5-63
Melton, Bertha	Rt. 1, Box 91 Suttle, Ala.	11-6-63 1-20-64
Melton, Bryant	No. 10 Suttle, Ala.	1-22-64 7-5-63
Melton, Ella Mae	Rt. 1, Box 89 Suttle, Ala.	11-6-63 1-20-64
Melton, Inell	Rt. 1, Box 102 Sprott, Ala.	6-11-63 11-5-63 1-20-64

<u>Name</u>	<u>Address</u>	<u>Date of Application(s)</u>
Melton, Jessie B.	Sprott, Ala.	11-5-63
Melton, Mary Yvonne	Sprott, Ala.	6-17-63
Miles, Mattie	Rt. 1, Box 159 Marion, Ala. (10-24-63 card has Box 139)	6-17-63 10-24-63
Miles, Willie L.	Rt. 1, Box 159 Marion, Ala. (10-24-63 card has Box 6)	6-17-63 10-24-63 2-3-64
Miller, John	Rt. 2, Box 105 Uniontown, Ala.	10-21-63 1-27-64
Milton, William	Rt. 2, Box 107 Uniontown, Ala.	6-11-63 10-21-63 1-27-64
Moore, Lillie M.	Box 427 Uniontown, Ala.	11-14-63
Nelson, Lozella	Rt. 3, Box 193 Marion, Ala.	6-12-63 10-15-63 12-16-63 2-17-64
Nelson, Retha	Rt. 3, Box 193 Marion, Ala.	6-12-63 10-15-63
Norfleet, Arnett	Rt. 1, Box 156 Newbern, Ala.	6-12-63 11-18-63 1-20-64
Norfleet, Ethel L.	Rt. 1, Box 169 Newbern, Ala.	6-12-63 1-28-64
Norfleet, Hattie	Rt. 1, Box 160 Newbern, Ala.	1-28-64
Norfleet, Sallie F.	Newbern, Ala.	6-20-63 11-18-63 1-27-64
Oakes, William	Rt. 2, Box 176 Marion, Ala.	6-12-63
Osburn, Clara M.	Rt. 3, Box 141 Marion, Ala.	6-12-63 10-1-63 12-16-63
Osburn, Roland	Rt. 3, Box 187 Marion, Ala.	6-3-63 10-15-63 12-16-63 2-17-64

<u>Name</u>	<u>Address</u>	<u>Date of Application(s)</u>
Perry, Sam	Marion, Ala.	6-12-63
Peterson, Emma Louise	P. O. Box 684 Marion, Ala.	7-5-63 11-18-63 2-17-64
Peterson, Lloyd	P. O. Box 684 Marion, Ala.	6-12-63
Pickens, James D.	P. O. Box 121 Marion, Ala.	7-15-63
Price, Lillian T.	Box 524 Uniontown, Ala.	11-14-63
Pryor, Dorothy M.	Rt. 1, Box 138 Sprott, Ala.	1-31-64
Pryor, Memphis	Rt. 1, Box 140 Sprott, Ala.	11-11-63
Pryor, Rosie Mae	Rt. 1, Box 137 Sprott, Ala.	6-12-63 11-5-63 1-27-64
Pryor, Sadie	Rt. 1, Box 158 Sprott, Ala.	6-12-63 11-5-63 1-27-64
Reed, Sumathia	Rt. 2, Box 98 Marion, Ala.	6-21-63
Richards, Albert	Rt. 2, Box 109 Uniontown, Ala.	10-21-63 1-30-64
Russell, Annie Murrell	Rt. 3, Box 152 Marion, Ala.	6-17-63 10-23-63
Russell, Birdea L.	Rt. 3, Box 151A Marion, Ala.	10-23-63
Rutledge, Albert L.	Rt. 1, Box 159 Sprott, Ala.	11-11-63
Rutledge, Ruby L.	Rt. 1, Box 73 Suttle, Ala.	11-11-63
Sanders, Eva L.	Rt. 1, Box 14A Marion, Ala.	10-7-63
Sanders, Mary B.	Rt. 1, Box 259 Marion, Ala.	11-18-63
Sanders, Sam	P. O. Box 62 Marion, Ala.	6-13-63 10-7-63 1-29-64

<u>Name</u>	<u>Address</u>	<u>Date of Application(s)</u>
Sanders, Willie James	Rt. 3, Box 83 Marion, Ala.	8-19-63
Sanders, Willie Pearl	Rt. 3, Box 83 Marion, Ala.	8-19-63
Scott, Memphis Lee	Rt. 2, Box 182 Marion, Ala.	7-15-63
Shepard, Ora Dee	Rt. 1, Box 242 Sprott, Ala.	11-18-63
Shaw, Normareen	Rt. 1, Box 12 Marion, Ala.	6-17-63
Sims, Lovey	Rt. 1, Box 175 Sprott, Ala.	11-11-63
Sims, Willie	Rt. 3, Box 34 Marion, Ala.	6-13-63
Simpson, Matisha T.	Marion, Ala.	6-13-63
Slater, Mary E. C.	P. O. Box 584 Uniontown, Ala.	6-13-63
Smith, Henry S.	Rt. 2, Box 14 Marion, Ala.	11-18-63 7-15-63
Smith, Lillian	Rt. 3, Box 188 Marion, Ala.	10-15-63 12-16-63 2-17-64 6-17-63
Smith, May L.	Rt. 3, Box 188 Marion, Ala.	11-18-63
Smith, Thelma O.	Rt. 3, Box 176 Marion, Ala.	10-16-63
Sprott, Mae Ruth	113 Clement St. Marion, Ala.	8-19-63
Sprott, Melvin	113 Clement St. Marion, Ala.	6-13-63
Stephens, Martha	Rt. 1, Box 52 Uniontown, Ala.	11-14-63
Stewart, Ella Dee	Rt. 3, Box 77 Marion, Ala.	6-13-63 10-21-63 1-6-64
Stewart, Joe N., Jr.	Rt. 3, Box 77 Marion, Ala.	6-13-63
Sullivan, Mary M.	P. O. Box 62 Marion, Ala.	7-15-63

<u>Name</u>	<u>Address</u>	<u>Date of Application(s)</u>
Swain, Arthur	Rt. 1, Box 114 Uniontown, Ala.	10-21-63
Tubbs, David	Rt. 1, Box 192 Newbern, Ala.	6-13-63
Tubbs, Della	217 Thompson St. Marion, Ala.	10-7-63 6-13-63
Tubbs, Johnny	217 Thompson St. Marion, Ala.	6-3-63
Tubbs, Josephine	Rt. 3, Box 193B Marion, Ala.	7-15-63 12-16-63
Tubbs, Lucy	Rt. 3, Box 193 Marion, Ala.	6-17-63 10-15-63 12-16-63
Tubbs, Mary B.	Rt. 1, Box 192 Newbern, Ala.	6-13-63
Turner, Evelyn L.	Rt. 1, Box 8 Marion, Ala.	6-14-63 10-7-63
Turner, Lee Curtis	P. O. Box 322 Marion, Ala.	6-14-63 undated
Wallace, Juanita	Uniontown, Ala.	11-14-63
Wallace, Lethaniel	Rt. 1, Box 85 Suttle, Ala.	1-7-63
Ward, John	Rt. 1, Box 106 Uniontown, Ala.	6-14-63
Ward, Richard	Uniontown, Ala.	6-14-63 11-14-63
Ward, Rosa Belle	Uniontown, Ala.	6-14-63 11-14-63
Williams, Gertrude	107 Thompson St. Marion, Ala.	6-14-63
Williams, Jessie B.	P. O. Box 483 Uniontown, Ala.	6-14-63 11-14-63
Williams, Lee	107 Thompson St. Marion, Ala.	6-14-63 1-27-64
Wilson, Carrie W.	General Delivery Uniontown, Ala.	6-14-63

<u>Name</u>	<u>Address</u>	<u>Date of Application(s)</u>
Wilson, Henrietta	Rt. 1, Box 212 Marion, Ala.	10-7-63
Woods, Edmond	Rt. 3, Box 138 Marion, Ala.	6-17-63 10-16-63 2-3-64
Wright, Leonia	212 Thompson St. Marion, Ala.	6-14-63 1-27-64
Wright, Searcey	212 Thompson St. Marion, Ala.	1-30-64
Young, Annie Lee	Rt. 1, Box 116 Sprott, Ala.	6-14-63 11-5-63 1-6-64 1-20-64